Upton Bishop Parish Council Minutes of the meeting of Upton Bishop Parish Council

Held Virtual Meeting

Tuesday 5th January 2021 at 7.00pm

AMENDMENTS AS STATED 2ND FEBRUARY 2021 MEETING SEE **

Present: Councillors: Keith Cornwall (Chairman), Brian Spencer (Acting RFO), Paul Newman, Mike Robins, Cllr Alison Feist (Temporary Clerk), Hazel Strange, Stephen Strange and Chloe Rusby, Barry Durkin

In attendance: 15 members of the public.

- 1. Apologies: Footpath Officer, Andy Parr.
- 2. We welcomed Barry Durkin back after his illness
- 3. **Declaration of interests: -** Cllr Paul Newman declared later in meeting that he personally knew Tessa McLean in respect of Planning application P203781/F. Point 10.4 on the agenda, Chairman Keith Cornwall is to be excluded from the discussion.

4. Adoption of Minutes of previous meetings:

Minutes from meeting 1st December 2020 - no amendments

5. Public participation:

- 5.1 Ward Councillor Barry Durkin presented report, which had already been distributed to Parish Councillor. It was recommended that it should be posted on the UB website for Parishioners to read. Anyone wanting a copy emailing to them, please contact the clerk.
- 5.2 Ward Cllr Barry Durkin was aware of the issues of flooding and lack of assistance from HC for sandbags, he has requested that the Clerk prepares a full report of the all the issues for him to take back to Herefordshire Council, which was agreed.
 - 5.3 There was a huge thanks to Chairman, Keith Cornwall for his efforts in Parish before Christmas with flooding problems at Phocle Green and Tan House and the need for sandbags at Upton Crews. A big thanks again to the continued support from Chicory Crops to the Parish, for their provision of the only sandbags available to us. Clerk Alison Feist had already written to Chief Executive and Balfour Beatty regarding the issues of flooding, sandbags and overflowing sewerage down the B4224 and was awaiting responses.
 - 5.4 Resident, Pete Fanshawe reported he had written to HC regarding the deterioration of the verges in the Parish. We thanked Peter for reporting comments into HC, we need the support from the Parishioners that they care and want HC to address the issues.
 - 5.5 Tony Chudziak attended to discuss his comments made over the last six months in communication to the Clerk. This Parish has included Phocle Green in the traffic calming which is totally separate to the Fownhope group. There seems to be a difference of opinion of the concerns in Phocle Green and Cllr Paul Newman was asked to obtain views from the residents and report back to Clerk before the next meeting before discussions start with HC.
 - 5.6 Resident, Mike Tyers, raised the extensive flooding at Tan House properties, the landowner had completed work in the autumn to relief the possible flooding, Mike keeps the drain clear and ditches, however the culvert is not big enough under the road to connect to the stream behind the house. PC were aware of the issues from Chairman Keith Cornwall's assistance before Christmas and Clerk Alison Feist had visited the site. A detailed list has been prepared for discussion when we get a visit from BB/HC.
 - 5.7 Resident, Brian Dowick raised the flooding that occurred at Phocle Green before Christmas and the fact that HC have recently stated under the new access for Garden Cottage that the likelihood of flooding is slim and comments for the planning application had not closed. Clerk Alison Feist

^{9th} January 2021 Page 1 of 3

Upton Bishop Parish Council Minutes of the meeting of Upton Bishop Parish Council

- stated in view of the extent of the flooding from the pictures, she had already submitted the evidence to planning for consideration.
- 5.8 Dog fouling notices had been supplied to Footpath officer, Andy Parr and notices had been posted. PC ask residents to please respect the Parish and take their dog mess home.
 - ** Acting Clerk had stated she had contacted BB for litter picking equipment packs and awaiting a response. **
- 6. Traffic Calming PC are still chasing for a meeting with BB/HC and was advised that Ward Councillor Barry Durkin had to be present. However, as Barry has returned to work this will now be pushed for the meeting to be arranged at the earliest opportunity. PC had experienced huge issue in BB not responding to emails and they are not available to contact via phone during lockdown working from home. B4224 Strategy Group Meeting Minutes are now available on the website and Cllr Spencer would welcome any comments for the next meeting as the group objectives are not necessarily aligned with the needs of Upton Bishop.
- 7. **Update of Drainage Grant –** After continual chasing in 2020 and the recent flooding in the Parish, a report was sent to Paul Hunter, BB and Chief Executive, Alistair Neill, and Ward Councillor Barry Durkin on the 2^{nd of} January and we are awaiting a response to an onsite meeting.
- 8. **Land at Upton Crews HMRC -** Highway research was requested from last meeting; Clerk reported it has been received and sent to HMRC to complete the ownership of the land at Upton Crews. Awaiting further communication.
- **9. Entrance at Hill Top –** Clerk Alison Feist reported no communication since Locality Steward had taken pictures, they had been chased again.

10. Planning

- 10.1 P204214/F (note the incorrect number was on the agenda) Meadow Bank Stables There was a unanimous rejection of this planning application for numerous reasons, full details will be documented in response to HC planning. In summary, there still are several inconsistencies in this, the fifth application we have considered between Probyn's Pitch and Hilltop, in a short space of time, which have all been withdrawn without decision being reached by HC. Whilst horses can be grazed on RA3 land without change of permission, it was not felt that changing use to a commercial operation was allowable. There are concerns that the access lane is not wide enough. The access, gate and hedge line have been modified prior to the PA being submitted. There seems to have been no allowance made for access and facilities for disabled people even though these are key to this proposal. The touring caravan, which was advised to be moved, has been moved to an adjacent field at Hilltop and may still need planning permission to be retained. Work was completed prior to this PA, even though the issues had been reported to the enforcement officer when the work was started The Councillors are concerned at the increasing number of applications where retrospective planning is being sought. The original issue was that a static caravan was sited without planning permission in June 2020 and is still there awaiting resolution.
- 10.2 P203781/F Phocle Cottage proposing moving of field gate. Applicant, Tessa McLean attended the meeting to answer any questions and concerns. The applicant confirmed that no ecology report had been requested as a hedge row was being removed for the new entrance and would expect comment that there should be new hedging planted to replace the old gate entrance.

 **The application was approved by the PC. **
- 10.3 No further updates from other applications, other than the Heatherfield application has been amended from residential to holiday accommodation
- 10.4 Pomona Grove Lights The Clerk had continued to ask for the brightness of the lights to be reviewed and highlight that the Core Strategy Plan was in place and referred to when planning

^{9th} January 2021 Page 2 of 3

Upton Bishop Parish Council Minutes of the meeting of Upton Bishop Parish Council

permission was approved for Pomona Grove. The Clerk is still trying to get a satisfactory resolution.

11. Finance

- 11.1 **Financial Report 30**th **December 2020** approved no issues. Cllr Hazel Strange agreed to sign off the documents.
- 11.2 Bank reconciliation for 30th December 2020 approved
- 11.3 How to spend surplus money, in view of the length of this meeting, decided to postpone until February 2021 meeting
- 11.4 **Chairman expenses** was agreed by majority after discussion, that the Chairman should receive some payment for his expenses for work that he completes within the village It was suggested that the Chairman would provide a petrol receipt and mileage form once every three months. Cllr Paul Newman suggested an expenses policy should be written and will be addressed over the next couple of months for future PC approval.
- 11.5 Lengthsman increase approved by PC
- 11.6 Payments approved
 - 11.6.1 Autela £38.26
 - 11.6.2UK2 £8.40
 - 11.6.3Lengthsman backpay £16.00

The Chairman closed the meeting at 8.40 pm.

- **12. NDP –** No update, Consultant, David Nicolls is preparing his report.
- 13. Emergency Plan in view of issues highlighted over Christmas it was agreed that the Parish needs to create their own emergency plan as there is a lack of assistance from HC. Massive thanks to the Councillors that offered to work on this plan and comes back with ideas for February Meeting, Cllr Hazel and Stephen Strange, Mike Robins and Chloe and Mark Rusby (some may not have heard their offer at the end of the meeting). Cllr Spencer agreed to ask whether the Millennium Hall car park could be used to site a sand bin with sandbags.
- **14.** Salt Bins Clerk, Alison Feist reported after no success getting replacement bins last year, she has reported two urgent bin replacements and a new bin to be sited on the HC site, will provide update.
- 15. Next Meeting Tuesday 2nd February 2021 7.00pm. Anyone wishing to join the virtual meeting, please send email to <u>clerk@uptonbishoppc.org</u> for joining instructions.

SIGNED	DATE	

^{9th} January 2021 Page 3 of 3